

#### **HOME SHOPPING GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS**

These General Terms and Conditions of the Dutch Home Shopping Organization (hereinafter referred to as: Thuiswinkel.org) have been drawn up in consultation with the Consumers' Association within the framework of the Self-Regulation Consultation Coordination Group (CZ) of the Social and Economic Council and will come into effect on 1 June 2014.

#### Table of contents:

Article 1 - Definitions

Article 2 - Identity of the entrepreneur

Article 3 - Applicability

Article 4 - The offer

Article 5 - The Agreement

Article 6 - Right of revocation

Article 7 - Obligations of the consumer during the reflection period

Article 8 - Exercise of the right of revocation by the consumer and costs thereof

Article 9 - Obligations of the entrepreneur in the event of withdrawal

Article 10 - Exclusion of right of revocation

Article 11 - The price

Article 12 - Compliance and additional warranty

Article 13 - Delivery and execution

Article 14 - Recurrent transactions: duration, termination and renewal

Article 15 – Payment

Article 16 - Complaints procedure

Article 17 - Disputes

Article 18 - Branch warranty

Article 19 - Additional or different provisions

Article 20 - Amendments to the Home Shopping General Terms and Conditions

# Article 1 - Definitions

For the purposes of these terms and conditions:

- Additional agreement: an agreement whereby the consumer acquires products, digital content and/or services in connection with a distance contract and these goods, digital content and/or services are supplied by the entrepreneur or by a third party on the basis of an agreement between that third party and the entrepreneur;
- 2. Reflection period: the period within which the consumer can exercise his right of withdrawal;
- 3. Consumer: the natural person who is not acting for purposes relating to his trade, business, craft or profession;
- 4. Day: calendar day;
- 5. Digital content: data produced and supplied in digital form;
- 6. Recurrent contract: a contract for the regular supply of goods, services and/or digital content for a specified period;
- 7. Durable data carrier: any tool including e-mail that enables the consumer or entrepreneur to store information that is addressed to him personally in a way that allows future consultation or use during a period that is tailored to the purpose for which the information is intended, and that allows unaltered reproduction of the stored information;
- 8. Right of revocation: the possibility for the consumer to withdraw from the distance contract within the reflection period;



- 9. Entrepreneur: the natural or legal person who is a member of Thuiswinkel.org and offers (access to) digital content and/or services at a distance to consumers;
- 10. Distance contract: a contract concluded between the trader and the consumer within the framework of an organised system for the long-distance sale of products, digital content and/or services, whereby, up to and including the conclusion of the contract, exclusive or joint use is made of one or more means of distance communication;
- 11. Model withdrawal form: the European model withdrawal form set out in Annex II to these conditions; Annex II does not need to be made available if the consumer does not have a right of revocation with regard to his order;
- 12. Technology for distance communication: means that can be used for concluding a contract, without the consumer and the trader having to be together in the same room at the same time.

# Article 2 - Identity of the entrepreneur

Entrepreneur name: AMV Online Trade B.V.

Acting under the name/names: Bynco

Business address: Stadsplateau 11 3521 AZ Utrecht

Telephone number: 030-2074220

Accessibility: From Monday to Sunday from 00.00 to 00.00 hrs.

E-mail address: <u>klantenservice@bynco.com</u>

Chamber of Commerce number: 67369502

VAT number: NL856952588B01

### Article 3 - Applicability

- 1. These general terms and conditions apply to every offer made by the entrepreneur and to every distance contract concluded between entrepreneur and consumer.
- 2. Before the distance contract is concluded, the text of these general conditions will be made available to the consumer. If this is not reasonably possible, the entrepreneur will indicate how the general terms and conditions can be viewed before the distance contract is concluded and will ensure that they will be sent to the consumer free of charge as soon as possible at the consumer's request.
- 3. If the distance contract is concluded electronically, then, contrary to the previous paragraph and before the distance contract is concluded, the text of these general terms and conditions may be made available to the consumer electronically in such a way that the consumer can easily store them on a durable data carrier. If this is not reasonably possible before the distance contract is concluded, it will be indicated where the general terms and conditions can be viewed electronically and they will be sent electronically or otherwise free of charge at the consumer's request.
- 4. In the event that, in addition to these general terms and conditions, specific product or service conditions also apply, the second and third paragraphs apply and the consumer can always invoke the applicable provision that is most favourable to him in the event of conflicting conditions.

#### Article 4 - The offer

- 1. If an offer has a limited period of validity or is made subject to conditions, this will be explicitly stated in the offer.
- 2. The offer contains a complete and accurate description of the products, digital content and/or services offered. The description is sufficiently detailed to enable the consumer to make a proper assessment of the offer. If the entrepreneur uses images, these are a true representation of the products, services and / or digital content offered. Obvious mistakes or obvious errors in the offer are not binding for the entrepreneur.
- 3. Each offer contains information which makes it clear to the consumer what rights and obligations are attached to the acceptance of the offer.



# Article 5 - The agreement

- 1. The agreement shall, subject to the provisions of paragraph 4, be reached when the consumer accepts the offer and meets the conditions set.
- 2. If the consumer has accepted the offer electronically, the entrepreneur shall immediately confirm receipt of acceptance of the offer electronically. As long as the receipt of this acceptance has not been confirmed by the trader, the consumer may dissolve the contract.
- 3. If the agreement is concluded electronically, the trader shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures to protect the electronic transfer of data and shall ensure a secure web environment. If the consumer is able to pay electronically, the entrepreneur will take appropriate security measures.
- 4. The entrepreneur may, within the limits of the law, inform himself whether the consumer can meet his payment obligations, as well as all those facts and factors that are important for a responsible conclusion of the distance contract. If, on the basis of this investigation, the entrepreneur has good grounds not to enter into the agreement, he is entitled to refuse an order or request, stating reasons, or to attach special conditions to the implementation.
- 5. Upon delivery of the product, service or digital content to the consumer at the very latest, the trader will send the following information, in writing or in such a way that the consumer can store it in an accessible manner on a durable medium:
- (a) the visiting address of the trader's establishment to which the consumer can come with complaints;
- b) the conditions under which and the manner in which the consumer can exercise the right of revocation, or a clear statement concerning the exclusion of the right of revocation; c) the information about warranties and existing after-sales service;
- d) the price including all taxes of the product, service or digital content; where applicable, the costs of delivery; and the method of payment, delivery or performance of the distance contract;
- (e) the requirements for termination of the contract if the contract has a duration of more than one year or is of indefinite duration;
- f) if the consumer has a right of revocation, the model withdrawal form.
- 6. In the case of a recurrent transaction, the provision in the previous paragraph shall apply only to the first delivery.

# Article 6 - Right of revocation

## For products:

- 1. The consumer can dissolve an agreement regarding the purchase of a product during a reflection period of 14 days without stating any reasons. The entrepreneur may ask the consumer for the reason for withdrawal, but does not oblige the consumer to state his reason(s).
- 2. The reflection period referred to in paragraph 1 starts on the day after the consumer, or a third party previously designated by the consumer, who is not the carrier, has received the product, or:
  - a) if the consumer has ordered several products in the same order: the day on which the consumer, or a third party indicated by him, has received the last product. The entrepreneur may, provided he has clearly informed the consumer about this prior to the ordering process, refuse an order for multiple products with a different delivery time.
  - b) b) if the delivery of a product consists of several shipments or parts: the day on which the consumer, or a third party designated by him, has received the last shipment or the last part;
  - c) in the case of contracts for recurring delivery of products during a given period: the day on which the consumer, or a third party designated by him, has received the first product.



In the case of services and digital content not supplied through a tangible medium:

- 3. The consumer may terminate a service contract and a contract for the supply of digital content which is not supplied through a tangible medium for a period of 14 days without giving any reason. The trader may ask the consumer for the reason for withdrawal, but does not oblige him to state his reason(s).
- 4. The reflection period referred to in paragraph 3 starts on the day following the conclusion of the contract.

Extended reflection period for products, services and digital content not supplied on a tangible medium in the event of failure to inform about the right of revocation:

- 5. If the Entrepreneur has not provided the Consumer with the legally required information about the right of revocation or the model withdrawal form, the reflection period shall end twelve months after the end of the original cooling-off period determined in accordance with the previous paragraphs of this article.
- 6. If the trader has provided the consumer with the information referred to in the previous paragraph within twelve months after the starting date of the original reflection period, the reflection period shall expire 14 days after the day on which the consumer has received that information.

# Article 7 - Obligations of the consumer during the reflection period

- 1. During the reflection period the consumer will handle the product and packaging with care. He will only unpack or use the product to the extent necessary to determine the nature, characteristics and functioning of the product. The starting point here is that the consumer may only handle and inspect the product as he would be allowed to do in a shop.
- 2. The consumer shall only be liable for any reduction in the value of the product resulting from handling of the product which goes beyond what is permitted in paragraph 1.
- 3. The consumer is not liable for any reduction in value of the product if the entrepreneur has not provided him with all legally required information about the right of revocation before or upon conclusion of the contract.

# Article 8 - Exercise of the right of revocation by the consumer and costs thereof

- 1. If the consumer exercises his right of revocation, he shall report this to the entrepreneur within the reflection period by means of the model withdrawal form or in another unambiguous manner.
- 2. As soon as possible, to a maximum of 14 days from the day following the notification referred to in paragraph 1, the consumer shall return the product, or hand it over to (an authorized representative of) the entrepreneur. This does not have to be done if the entrepreneur has offered to collect the product himself. The consumer has in any case observed the return period if he returns the product before the reflection period has expired.
- 3. The consumer returns the product with all delivered accessories, if possible, in original condition and packaging, and in accordance with reasonable and clear instructions provided by the entrepreneur.

  4. The risk and burden of proof for the correct and timely exercise of the right of revocation lies with the
- consumer.
- 5. The consumer shall bear the direct costs of returning the product. If the entrepreneur has not reported that the consumer has to bear these costs or if the entrepreneur indicates to bear the costs himself, the consumer does not have to bear the costs of returning the product.
- 6. If the consumer withdraws after having first expressly requested that the provision of the service or the supply of gas, water or electricity not made ready for sale in a limited volume or set quantity commences during the reflection period, the consumer owes the proprietor an amount that is proportional to the part of the commitment that the proprietor has fulfilled at the time of revocation, compared to the complete fulfilment of the commitment.



- 7. The consumer shall not bear any costs for the performance of services or the supply of water, gas or electricity, which are not put up for sale in a limited volume or quantity, or for the supply of district heating, if:
  - a) the entrepreneur has not provided the consumer with the information required by law concerning the right of revocation, the reimbursement of costs in the event of revocation or the model withdrawal form, or;
  - b) the consumer has not expressly requested performance of the service or the supply of gas, water, electricity or district heating during the reflection period.
- 8. The consumer shall not bear any costs for the supply, in whole or in part, of digital content which is not supplied on a tangible medium if:
  - a) he has not expressly agreed to commence the execution of the contract before the end of the reflection period;
  - b) he has not acknowledged the loss of his right of revocation when giving his consent; or
  - c) the entrepreneur has failed to confirm this statement by the consumer.
- 9. If the consumer makes use of his right of revocation, all ancillary agreements will be dissolved by law.

# Article 9 - Obligations of the entrepreneur in case of revocation

- 1. If the Entrepreneur makes the notification of revocation by the Consumer possible electronically, he shall send a confirmation of receipt without delay after receipt of this notification.
- 2. The Entrepreneur shall reimburse all payments made by the Consumer, including any delivery costs charged by the Entrepreneur for the returned product, without delay to a maximum of 14 days following the day on which the Consumer notifies him of the withdrawal. Unless the Entrepreneur offers to collect the product himself, he may wait until he has received the product or until the Consumer demonstrates that he has returned the product, whichever is earlier.
- 3. The trader shall use the same means of payment that the consumer has used for the refund, unless the consumer agrees to another method. The refund shall be free of charge for the consumer.

  4. If the consumer has opted for a more expensive method of delivery than the cheapest standard delivery, the trader does not have to reimburse the additional costs for the more expensive method.

# Article 10 - Exclusion of right of revocation

The Entrepreneur can exclude the following products and services from the right of revocation, but only if the Entrepreneur has clearly stated this in the offer in a timely fashion before finalizing the contract:

- 1. Products or services whose price is subject to fluctuations in the financial market over which the Entrepreneur has no influence and which may occur within the withdrawal period.
- 2. Contracts finalized during a public auction. A public auction is understood to mean a sales method in which products, digital content and/or services are offered by the entrepreneur to the consumer who attends or is given the opportunity to attend the auction in person, under the supervision of an auctioneer, and in which the successful bidder is obliged to purchase the products, digital content and/or services;
- 3. Service agreements, after full execution of the service, but only if:
  - a) execution has commenced with the express prior consent of the consumer; and
  - b) the consumer has declared that he loses his right of revocation as soon as the entrepreneur has fully executed the contract;



- 4. Package holidays as referred to in Section 7:500 of the Dutch Civil Code and passenger transport contracts;
- 5. Service contracts for the provision of accommodation, if the contract provides for a specific date or period of performance and other than for residential purposes, goods transport, car rental services and catering;
- 6. Leisure contracts, if the contract provides for a specific date or period of performance thereof;
- 7. Products made to the consumer's specifications, which are not prefabricated and which are made on the basis of an individual choice or decision made by the consumer, or which are clearly intended for a particular person;
- 8. Products which are liable to deteriorate rapidly or have a limited shelf life;
- 9. Sealed products which are not suitable for return for reasons of health or hygiene and whose seal has been broken after delivery;
- 10. Products which, by their nature, have been irrevocably mixed with other products after delivery;
- 11. Alcoholic beverages the price of which has been agreed upon when the purchase agreement has been made, but whose delivery can only take place after 30 days, and whose actual value depends on fluctuations in the market over which the entrepreneur has no influence;
- 12. Sealed audio or video recordings and computer software, the seal of which has been broken after delivery;
- 13. Newspapers, magazines or periodicals, with the exception of subscriptions to these;
- 14. The supply of digital content other than on a tangible medium, but only if:
  - a) the execution has started with the consumer's express prior consent; and
  - b) the consumer has declared that he thereby loses his right of revocation.

# Article 11 - The price

- 1. During the validity period stated in the offer, the prices of the products and/or services offered will not be increased, except for price changes due to changes in VAT rates.
- 2. Contrary to the previous paragraph, the entrepreneur may offer products or services whose prices are subject to fluctuations in the financial market and on which the entrepreneur has no influence, with variable prices. This obligation to fluctuate and the fact that any prices quoted are target prices will be stated in the offer.
- 3. Price increases within 3 months after the conclusion of the agreement are only permitted if they are the result of statutory regulations or provisions.
- 4. Price increases from 3 months after the conclusion of the contract are only permitted if the entrepreneur has stipulated this and:
  - a) they are the result of statutory regulations or provisions; or
  - b) the consumer has the right to terminate the contract from the day on which the price increase takes effect.
- 5. The prices mentioned in the offer of products or services are inclusive of VAT.



### Article 12 - Fulfilment of agreement and additional guarantee

- 1. The entrepreneur guarantees that the products and/or services meet the terms of the agreement, the specifications stated in the offer, the requirements of reliability and/or usability and all existing legal provisions and/or government regulations at the date of the conclusion of the agreement. If agreed, the entrepreneur also guarantees that the product is suitable for exceptional use.
- 2. An additional guarantee provided by the entrepreneur, his supplier, manufacturer or importer never restricts the legal rights and claims that the consumer can assert against the entrepreneur on the basis of the contract if the entrepreneur has failed to fulfil his part of the contract.

  3. Extra guarantee is understood to mean any undertaking by the proprietor, his supplier, importer or producer in which he grants the consumer certain rights or claims that go beyond what the consumer is legally obliged to if he has failed to fulfil his part of the contract.

# Article 13 - Delivery and execution

- 1. The entrepreneur will take the greatest possible care in receiving and fulfilling orders of products and in assessing applications for the provision of services.
- 2. The place of delivery is the address that the consumer has made known to the entrepreneur.
- 3. Subject to what is stated in Article 4 of these General Terms and Conditions, the Entrepreneur shall execute accepted orders expeditiously but at the latest within 30 days, unless a different delivery period has been agreed upon. If delivery is delayed, or if an order is not or only partially carried out, the consumer will receive notification of this at the latest 30 days after the order was placed. In that case, the consumer has the right to dissolve the agreement free of charge and is entitled to compensation.
- 4. After dissolution in accordance with the previous paragraph, the entrepreneur will immediately refund the amount paid by the consumer.
- 5. The risk of damage and/or loss of products rests with the entrepreneur up to the moment of delivery to the consumer or a representative appointed in advance and made known to the entrepreneur, unless expressly agreed otherwise.

# Article 14 - Recurrent transactions: duration, termination and extension

# Termination:

- 1. The consumer may terminate an indefinite contract including but not limited to the regular delivery of products (including electricity) or services at any time subject to agreed termination rules and notice of up to one month.
- 2. The consumer may terminate a temporary contract including but not limited to the regular delivery of products (including electricity) or services, at any time at the end of the defined period, subject to the agreed termination rules and a notice of up to one month.
- 3. The consumer may terminate the agreements referred to in the previous paragraphs:
  - a) at any time and not be limited to termination at a specific time or during a specific period;
  - b) in the same way as they were entered into by the consumer;
  - c) always with the same notice as the entrepreneur has stipulated for himself.

#### Renewal:

- 4. A contract entered into for a definite period of time for the regular delivery of products (including electricity) or services may not be tacitly extended or renewed for a definite period.
- 5. Contrary to the previous paragraph, a fixed-term contract that has been concluded for the regular supply of daily news and weekly newspapers and magazines may be tacitly renewed for a fixed period of up to three months, if the consumer at the end of the prolongation extended contract may terminate with a notice of up to one month.
- 6. A fixed-term contract that has been reached for the regular delivery of products or services may only be tacitly extended for an indefinite period of time if the consumer may at any time terminate with a



notice not exceeding one month. The notice period shall not exceed three months if the agreement provides for the regular, but less than monthly, delivery of daily, news and weekly newspapers and magazines.

7. An agreement with a limited duration for the regular supply of daily newspapers, news and weekly newspapers and magazines (trial or introductory subscription) shall not be tacitly renewed and shall end automatically at the end of the trial or introductory period.

### **Duration:**

8. If a contract has a duration of more than one year, the consumer may after one year terminate the contract at any time with a notice of up to one month, unless the reasonableness and fairness opposes termination before the end of the agreed upon term.

# Article 15 - Payment

- 1. Unless otherwise stipulated in the agreement or additional conditions, the amounts owed by the consumer must be paid within 14 days after the start of the reflection period, or in the absence of a reflection period within 14 days after the conclusion of the agreement. In the case of an agreement for the provision of a service, this period commences on the day after the consumer has received confirmation of the agreement.
- 2. When selling products to consumers, the consumer may never be obliged in the general terms and conditions to pay more than 50% in advance. If an advance payment has been stipulated, the consumer may not assert any rights regarding the execution of the order or service(s) in question before the stipulated advance payment has been made.
- 3. The consumer has the duty to report any inaccuracies in the payment details provided or stated to the entrepreneur without delay.
- 4. If the consumer does not meet his payment obligation(s) on time, he will owe the statutory interest on the amount still owed after he has been notified of the late payment by the proprietor and the proprietor has granted the consumer a period of 14 days to still meet his payment obligations, after the failure to pay within this 14-day period, and the proprietor is entitled to charge the extrajudicial collection costs he has incurred. These collection costs amount to a maximum of: 15% on outstanding amounts up to € 2,500; 10% on the next € 2,500 and 5% on the next € 5,000 with a minimum of € 40. The entrepreneur can deviate from the amounts and percentages mentioned for the benefit of the consumer.

## Article 16 - Complaints procedure

- 1. The entrepreneur has a sufficiently publicized complaints procedure and handles the complaint in accordance with this complaints procedure.
- 2. Complaints about the implementation of the agreement must be submitted to the entrepreneur within a reasonable time after the consumer has discovered the defects, complete and clearly described.
- 3. Complaints submitted to the entrepreneur will be answered within a period of 14 days from the date of receipt. If a complaint requires a foreseeably longer processing time, the entrepreneur will respond within the period of 14 days with a notice of receipt and an indication when the consumer can expect a more detailed answer.
- 4. A complaint about a product, service or the entrepreneur's service can also be submitted via a complaints form on the consumer page of the Thuiswinkel.org website www.thuiswinkel.org. The complaint is then sent both to the entrepreneur in question and to Thuiswinkel.org.
- 5. The consumer should give the entrepreneur at least 4 weeks to resolve the complaint in mutual consultation. After this period, a dispute will arise that is subject to dispute resolution.



### Article 17 - Disputes

- 1. Agreements between the entrepreneur and the consumer to which these general terms and conditions apply are exclusively governed by Dutch law.
- 2. Disputes between a consumer and an entrepreneur over the execution or performance of contracts relating to products and services which are supplied or to be supplied by this trader can be brought before the Thuiswinkel Disputes Committee, P.O. Box 90600, 2509 LP in The Hague (www.sgc.nl), by either the consumer or the entrepreneur, with due observance of the provisions set out below. 3. A dispute will only be dealt with by the Disputes Committee if the consumer has first submitted his
- 3. A dispute will only be dealt with by the Disputes Committee if the consumer has first submitted his complaint to the entrepreneur within a reasonable period of time.
- 4. If the complaint does not lead to a solution, the dispute must be brought before the Disputes Committee in writing or in another form to be determined by the Committee no later than 12 months after the date on which the consumer submitted the complaint to the entrepreneur. 5. If the consumer wishes to submit a dispute to the Disputes Committee, the entrepreneur is bound by this choice. It is preferable for the consumer to first report this to the entrepreneur. 6. If the entrepreneur wishes to submit a dispute to the Disputes Committee, the consumer must- within five weeks after a written request made by the entrepreneur in writing- state in writing whether he agrees or whether he wishes the dispute to be dealt with by the competent court. If the entrepreneur does not receive word of the consumer's choice within the period of five weeks, then the entrepreneur is entitled to submit the dispute to the competent court.
- 7. The Disputes Committee pronounces its verdict under the conditions as set out in the regulations of the Disputes Committee (www.degeschillencommissie.nl/over-ons/de-commissies/2404/thuiswinkel). The decisions of the Disputes Committee are made by means of binding advice.
- 8. The Disputes Committee will not deal with a dispute or discontinue the claim if the entrepreneur has been granted a suspension of payment, has gone bankrupt or has actually ceased his business activities before the dispute has been dealt with by the committee at the session and a final decision has been given.
- 9. If, in addition to the Thuiswinkel Disputes Committee, another Disputes Committee that is recognised or affiliated to the Stichting Geschillencommissies voor Consumentenzaken (SGC) or the Klachteninstituut Financiële Dienstverlening (Kifid) (Financial Services Complaints Institute) is involved, the Thuiswinkel Disputes Committee is takes precedence for disputes concerning primarily the method of remote sales or service provision. For all other disputes, the other acknowledged disputes committee affiliated to the SGC or Kifid will take precedence.

## Article 18 - Branch warranty

- 1. Thuiswinkel.org guarantees compliance with the binding advice of the Thuiswinkel Disputes Committee by its members, unless the member decides to submit the binding advice to the court for review within two months after it has been sent. This guarantee is revived if the binding advice, after review by the court, has remained in force and the verdict showing this has become final and conclusive. Up to a maximum amount of € 10.000,- per binding advice, the amount will be paid to the consumer by Thuiswinkel.org. For amounts greater than €10.000,- per binding advice, €10.000,- will be paid out. In case of excess, Thuiswinkel.org has a best-efforts obligation to ensure that the member complies with the binding advice.
- 2. The application of this guarantee requires that the consumer makes a written appeal to Thuiswinkel.org and that he assigns his claim against the entrepreneur to Thuiswinkel.org. If the claim on the entrepreneur amounts to more than € 10.000,-, the consumer is offered to transfer his claim insofar as it exceeds the amount of € 10.000,- to Thuiswinkel.org, after which this organization in its own name and at its own expense will request the payment thereof in court in order to satisfy the consumer.



### **Article 19 - Additional or different provisions**

Additional provisions or provisions deviating from these general terms and conditions may not be to the consumer's detriment and must be recorded in writing or in such a way that they can be stored by the consumer in an accessible manner on a durable data carrier.

### Article 20 - Amendments to the Home Shopping General Terms and Conditions

- 1. Thuiswinkel.org will not change these general terms and conditions except in consultation with the Consumers' Association.
- 2. Amendments to these terms and conditions are only effective after they have been published in an appropriate manner, in the understanding that in the event of applicable amendments during the term of an offer, the provision most favourable to the consumer will prevail.

### Thuiswinkel.org

www.thuiswinkel.org

Horaplantsoen 20

6717 LT Ede P.O. Box 7001 6710 CB Ede

#### Annex I: Model revocation form

Model revocation form

(complete and return this form only if you wish to revoke the agreement)

(a) To: [Entrepreneur's name]

[ Entrepreneur's geographical address [ Entrepreneur's fax number, if available]

[ E-mail address or electronic address of entrepreneur]

(b) I/We\* hereby give notice that I/We\* hereby give notice of our agreement concerning the sale of the following products: [product name]\* the provision of the following digital content: [Digital Content Designation]\*. the provision of the following service: [indication of service]\*,

revoked/cancellation\*

- (c) Ordered on\*/received on\* [date of order for services or receipt for products].
- (d) [Consumer(s) name(s)]
- (e) [Address of consumer(s)]
- (f) [Consumer(s)' Signature(s)] (only if this form is submitted on paper)

<sup>\*</sup> Strike out what does not apply or fill in what is applicable.



#### I GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS BYNCO EXTERNAL SELLERS

#### 1 Definitions

- 1.1. In these BYNCO General Terms and Conditions (the "General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers"), the following terms shall have the meaning given below, unless expressly stated otherwise:
- 1.1.1. **Offer**: Any offer of a Car by Seller to Buyers the BYNCO environment, including the Information and other information that can reasonably be requested by BYNCO.
- 1.1.2. **Car**: The vehicle that Seller offers for sale through the BYNCO environment, and which vehicle Seller can sell directly to Buyer and deliver in ownership on the basis of a Purchase Agreement between Seller and Buyer.
- 1.1.3. **BYNCO**: AMV Online Trade B.V., trading under the name BYNCO.
- 1.1.4. **BYNCO environment**: the online environment (including, but not limited to <a href="www.bynco.com">www.bynco.com</a> and any application designated by BYNCO) where BYNCO offers sellers the opportunity to offer Cars, where the Seller-Buyer Purchase Agreement can be established and where Seller and Buyer are (in)in)directly in contact with each other.
- 1.1.5. Third Party Funds Account: the third party funds account held by Stichting GoCredible in which the Buyer pays the Purchase Price, as further designated by BYNCO.
- 1.1.6. **Services**: all services offered by BYNCO to Seller as defined in Article 4 of these BYNCO Private Seller Terms and Conditions.
- 1.1.7. **User:** every visitor of the BYNCO environment.
- 1.1.8. **Purchase Agreement**: the agreement concluded between the External Seller and a Buyer relating to the sale, purchase or delivery of a Car via the BYNCO environment, including the General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO and the General Terms and Conditions of the Home Shopping applicable to that Purchase Agreement.
- 1.1.9. **Purchase price:** the full purchase price for a Car as referred to in the Agreement (including the costs of preparation and delivery, including BPM, VAT, the BYNCO guarantee scheme and half a tank) which the Buyer must pay to the External Seller as the Seller pursuant to the Purchase Agreement concluded between them.
- 1.1.10. **Buyer:** the natural person who has entered into a Sales Agreement with the External Seller via the BYNCO environment and who becomes the legal owner of the Car.
- 1.1.11. **Damage assessor**: the damage assessor to be appointed by BYNCO or the External Seller who will determine the amount of any loss of value of the Car in accordance with the provisions of Article 17.2 of these BYNCO General Terms and Conditions.
- 1.1.12. **Stichting GoCredible:** the Stichting Derdengelden GoCredible, registered in the trade register of the Chamber of Commerce under number 63721325.
- 1.1.13. **Assigned:** the natural person named in the Purchase Agreement as the person in whose name the Car must be registered with the Road Traffic Department (RDW).



1.1.14. **External Seller:** the party that offers and sells Cars to the Buyer via the BYNCO environment on the basis of a Purchase Agreement concluded between the External Seller and the Buyer.

#### 2 General

If these General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers do not contain any provisions on a particular subject, the provisions on that subject as laid down in the General Terms and Conditions of the Home Shopping Sector will apply. If a specific subject matter is regulated both in the General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers and in the General Terms and Conditions of the Thuiswinkel, then the provisions of the General Terms and Conditions of the Thuiswinkel take precedence. The External Seller guarantees that the General Home Shopping Terms and Conditions will be implemented.

# 3 Applicability

- 3.1 The General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers apply to the Offer, order, purchase, delivery and warranty of Cars via the BYNCO environment by the External Seller and the Sales Agreement. These BYNCO External Sellers General Terms and Conditions shall apply to the relationship between the Buyer and the External Seller and BYNCO.
- 3.2 Every User who visits the BYNCO environment and every Buyer who places an order within the BYNCO environment for the purchase of a Car from an External Seller and enters into a Purchase Agreement accepts the applicability of the General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers.
- 3.3 The provisions of the General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers may only be deviated from in writing and with the consent of BYNCO and the External Seller, in which case the other provisions will remain in full force.
- 3.4 All rights and claims stipulated in the General Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers and in any further agreements for the benefit of BYNCO are likewise stipulated for the benefit of intermediaries and other third parties engaged by BYNCO, expressly including the External Seller.
- 3.5 Prior to the conclusion of the Sales Agreement, the text of these General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers will be made available to the Buyer. If this is not reasonably possible for any reason whatsoever, the External Seller will indicate, prior to the conclusion of the Purchase Agreement, how the General Terms and Conditions can be inspected by BYNCO and/or the External Seller and that, at the Buyer's request, they will be sent to the Buyer free of charge as soon as possible.
- 3.6 BYNCO will be entitled to amend the General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers from time to time. The amended conditions will apply as soon as they have been published on the BYNCO environment. If a Buyer subsequently places an order for a Car as offered via the BYNCO environment, the Buyer thereby accepts the applicability of the amended BYNCO



General Conditions. It is advisable to consult the BYNCO General Terms and Conditions for External Sellers before placing an order for a Car via the BYNCO environment.

# 4 Buyer

- 4.1 The Buyer must meet at least the following requirements:
  - 4.1.1 The Buyer must have a customer account with BYNCO;
  - 4.1.2 The Buyer is at least 18 years of age;
  - 4.1.3 The Buyer must be in possession of a valid driving licence;
  - 4.1.4 The Buyer can be contacted by e-mail.
- 4.2 The Buyer will be responsible for the use made of his username and password. BYNCO therefore advises the Buyer to use a unique password and to keep this password carefully confidential.
- 4.3 The Buyer will not be entitled to allow others to use its account, other than the Attributed One
- 4.4 The Buyer is responsible for the accuracy of the information in its own account.

#### 5 The Purchase

- Prior to the conclusion of the Purchase Agreement, BYNCO will make it clear in the BYNCO environment whether the Car is offered and sold in the BYNCO environment by BYNCO or the External Seller. If the Buyer in the BYNCO environment decides to accept the Offer from and purchase a Car from a Third Party Seller, the Buyer expressly does not purchase from and does not enter into an agreement with BYNCO, but directly with the Third Party Seller, which party will also deliver the Car in accordance with these BYNCO Third Party Sellers General Conditions. The Buyer acknowledges that the Purchase Agreement is concluded between the Buyer and the External Seller and that BYNCO is not and/or will not be a party to this agreement.
- 5.2 If the Buyer wishes to purchase a Car from the External Seller via the BYNCO environment, the Buyer registers in the BYNCO environment and the Buyer goes through the steps in the online purchase process, including in any case:
  - 5.2.1. The complete and correct completion of all details of the Buyer and if the Named Person is not the same natural person as the Buyer of the Named Person in the BYNCO environment, whereby the specified address at which the actual delivery of the Car takes place must be an address in the Netherlands (with the exception of the Waddeneilanden);



- 5.2.2 the complete and correct completion of all required details of the Employee's valid driving licence, which licence shall be valid for 14 days from the date of actual delivery of the Car in connection with the Buyer's right of revocation as referred to in Clause 15;
- 5.2.3 confirm that the Buyer is purchasing the relevant Car from a Third Party Seller, not from BYNCO, by ticking the "I confirm that I am purchasing the Car from a Third Party Seller, not from BYNCO, and agree"; and
- 5.2.4 acceptance of the BYNCO General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers, the Thuiswinkel General Terms and Conditions and the BYNCO Guarantee Scheme by ticking the "I have read and understood the BYNCO General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers, the Thuiswinkel General Terms and Conditions and the BYNCO Guarantee Scheme and agree to them" after electronic submission of the BYNCO General Terms and Conditions of BYNCO External Sellers, the Thuiswinkel General Terms and Conditions and the BYNCO Guarantee Scheme as applicable conditions..
- 5.3 BYNCO is not liable for information not coming across on time or not clearly, or for manifest errors in the Offer, the Sales Agreement or the BYNCO environment, regardless of from whom the information originates or to whom this information is provided.
- 5.4 If the Buyer in the BYNCO environment has completed all steps in the online purchase process for the purchase of a Car from the External Seller, but the payment of the Purchase Price to the Third Party Account by the Buyer for any reason fails, the Car will remain reserved for the Buyer by the External Seller in the BYNCO environment for 24 hours from the time of completion of the online purchase process (with the exception of payment). If payment is not made within these 24 hours for any reason, the reservation of the Car for the Buyer will be cancelled and the Car will become available again in the BYNCO environment. If the Buyer decides to pay on Delivery, the above shall not apply.
- The Purchase Agreement between the External Seller and the Buyer is concluded as soon as the Buyer has completed all steps in the online purchase process and placed the order in the BYNCO environment, thereby accepting the External Seller's Offer via the BYNCO environment.
- 5.6 If the External Seller decides to revoke the Sales Agreement in accordance with the provisions of Article 5.4 of the General Terms and Conditions of the Home Shopping, it will notify the Buyer of this directly or via BYNCO as soon as possible, and in any event no later than 24 hours after placing the order.
- 5.7 After placing the order, the Buyer will receive from BYNCO an automatically generated e-mail containing a record of the details entered, including but not limited to (i) the Buyer's name, address and place of residence, (ii) the name and address, address and domicile details of the Named Person if this is not the Buyer, (iii) name, address and registered office details of the External Seller, (iv) the Car Purchase Price, (v) the address to which the Car is to be delivered, (vi) the desired delivery date and (vii) change and cancellation details.



- 5.8 If the Attorney-in-fact is a person other than the Buyer, BYNCO will also send the e-mail referred to in Article 5.7 to the Attorney-in-fact. BYNCO will also notify the Attributed in that e-mail that the Purchaser will acquire ownership of the Car and that the Attributed will hold the Car only for the Purchaser.
- 5.9 The invoice for the purchase of the Car will be issued to the Buyer by BYNCO, on behalf of the External Seller, upon the actual delivery of the Car (see Article 10.4).

# 6 Payment

- Part of the performance of the Purchase Agreement will be the payment of the Purchase Price by the Buyer into the Third Party Funds Account, as set out in Article 6.2.
- In order to protect the Buyer's interests, BYNCO has entered into an agreement with GoCredible B.V. (registered in the trade register of the Chamber of Commerce under number 63715791) and Stichting GoCredible under which the Buyer does not pay the Purchase Price directly to the External Seller or BYNCO, but pays it in the first instance into the Third Party Funds Account.
- Buyer will pay in full by transferring the Purchase Price to the Third Party Funds Account.
- From the moment of receipt of the Purchase Price into the Third Party Funds Account until the moment of legal delivery of the Car to the Buyer as referred to in Article 11, the Stichting GoCredible will hold the Purchase Price for the Buyer. If an Offer is revoked as referred to in Article 5.6, or the Purchase Agreement is dissolved prior to or at the time of actual delivery of the Car as referred to in Articles 10.12 and 14, BYNCO instructs Stichting GoCredible to refund the Purchase Price as soon as possible, but no later than within 2 working days, to the bank account number used by the Buyer to transfer the Purchase Price to the Third Party Funds Account.
- 6.5 If the Buyer has opted for Payment on Delivery, the Buyer is obliged to ensure that on the day of Delivery there is sufficient balance and limit space available to pay the Purchase Price into the Third-Party Funds Account via Internet banking (only via BYNCO's iDEAL payment link). If Payment at Delivery has been selected, payment must be successfully made prior to the time of legal delivery of the Car to the Buyer.
- 6.6 From the moment of legal delivery of the Car to the Buyer as referred to in Article 11, Stichting GoCredible will hold the Purchase Price for the External Seller and Stichting GoCredible will pay the Purchase Price to the External Seller and possibly BYNCO, insofar as BYNCO is entitled to part of the Purchase Price on the basis of the terms and conditions agreed between BYNCO and the External Seller.

# 7 Assignment Car

7.1 The registration number of the Car will be made out in the name of the Attributed at the time of the actual delivery of the Car.



- 7.2 BYNCO is authorised, whether or not on behalf of the External Seller, to check with the relevant authorities whether the Named Person's driving licence is a valid Dutch driving licence and the Buyer gives its consent to this on its own behalf or on behalf of the Named Person. The Buyer warrants to BYNCO and the External Seller that the Buyer has sufficient power of attorney from the Attorney-in-fact.
- 7.3 If, as the Buyer, you have a vehicle registration block at the RDW, the costs will be recovered from you when the vehicle is called up, including compensation for costs incurred. This amount is € 450.

### 8 Power of attorney

Insofar as the Attorney-in-fact is a natural person other than the Purchaser, the Purchaser hereby and in advance grants the Attorney-in-fact an irrevocable power of attorney to accept the Car on behalf of the Purchaser upon actual delivery and to obtain possession of the Car from the External Seller and/or BYNCO on behalf of the Purchaser by receiving all relevant documents and keys. The Purchaser thus acquires ownership of the Car and the Named Person shall hold the Car for the Purchaser.

# 9 Processing ((special) personal) data

- 9.1 For the purpose of executing and improving the Sales Agreement, the BYNCO environment and Services, it is necessary for BYNCO, the External Seller and the service providers engaged by it to collect, process and store certain data of the Buyer, Assigned and the relevant Cars.
- 9.2 BYNCO shall collect, process and store this data of the Buyer, Designated and the relevant Cars only to the extent necessary for the performance and improvement of the Sales Agreement and the BYNCO Environment and Services. The collection, processing and storage of data of the Buyer, Designated and the relevant Vehicles shall take place in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.
- 9.3 By accepting these General Conditions BYNCO External Sellers, the Buyer, also on behalf of the Attorney-in-fact, authorises BYNCO and the External Seller to collect, process and store data of the Buyer, Attorney-in-fact and the relevant Vehicles to the extent necessary for the performance and improvement of the Purchase Agreement and the BYNCO environment and Services.
- 9.4 The data collected, processed and stored of the Buyer, the Designated Cars and the relevant Cars belong mainly to the following categories:
  - 9.4.1 the information provided by the Buyer and the Named Person himself/herself within the framework of the Car Purchase, such as name, (delivery) address, telephone number, driving licence characteristics;
  - 9.4.2 the information that BYNCO must collect in order to be able to assess whether the Buyer who invokes his/her right of withdrawal, right of rescission or on any other basis as a result of which the Purchase Agreement is not valid or no longer valid, has caused damage to the Car, has driven too many kilometres, or has used



the Car improperly, as described in Article 19 of the General Conditions BYNCO; and

- 9.4.3 the information received by BYNCO in respect of any car to be exchanged by the Buyer, including but not limited to the registration number, mileage and other characteristics of such car.
- 9.5 The data required for the execution and improvement of the Purchase Agreement and the BYNCO environment and Services will be stored for the duration of the legal warranty on the Car and for as long as is necessary for BYNCO to comply with its obligations in accordance with the applicable regulations. BYNCO will delete the ((special) personal) data after the expiry of the said periods, or so much earlier at the express request of the Buyer.
- 9.6 BYNCO will not share any data within the framework of the Purchase Agreement, the BYNCO environment and Services with independent third parties for their use, unless BYNCO has good grounds to assume that this is necessary to comply with regulations applicable to BYNCO and/or the suppliers and service providers engaged by it;
- 9.7 In the situation described above, BYNCO and/or the suppliers and service providers engaged by it will immediately provide personally traceable information without notice.
- 9.8 Individuals have, under the applicable regulations, the right to request modification and/or removal of (incorrect) data and the right to request a copy of the stored data. Such requests must be submitted to BYNCO in writing, be personally signed and contain the name, address and account details of the Buyer or Assigned.
- 9.9 BYNCO reserves the right to share aggregated (non-personally identifiable) information obtained in the context of the BYNCO environment with third parties for any purpose whatsoever. If the Buyer or the Assigned does not wish this information to be shared, the Buyer shall not be required to enter any (personal) data in the BYNCO environment.
- 9.10 Under no circumstances shall BYNCO be liable for any breach by the External Seller of the applicable legislation on ((special) personal) data.

# 10 Actual delivery

- 10.1 On behalf of the External Seller, BYNCO will contact the Buyer and/or the Attorney General within 1 working day after the conclusion of the Purchase Agreement to plan the time of actual delivery of the Car by BYNCO. The actual delivery shall take place on the date and address stated by the Buyer in the Sales Agreement as the domicile of the Buyer or of the Attorney-in-fact if this is not the Buyer.
  - 10.1.1 The actual delivery will take place at an address in the Netherlands, with the exception of the Waddeneilanden.
- 10.2 The address of actual delivery cannot be changed. Actual delivery of the Car will at all times take place to the domicile address of the Attributed, unless the Buyer and the Seller have



expressly agreed that actual delivery will take place at the place of business of the External Seller, in which case the acts in connection with the actual delivery as referred to in Articles 10.9 to 10.12 inclusive will be performed by the External Seller itself.

- 10.3 When choosing the date of actual delivery of the Car, a delivery time will apply. The delivery time of the Car will in any event be a minimum of 5 working days and a maximum of 19 working days, calculated from the time at which the Purchase Agreement was concluded.
- 10.4 1 working day prior to the agreed date and time of actual delivery, BYNCO shall send an email to the Buyer and the Named Person if this is not the Buyer, confirming the actual delivery of the Car and providing a payment statement. The invoice for the purchase of the Car on the basis of a Purchase Agreement will be issued to the Buyer upon actual delivery (see Article 5.9). If the Buyer wishes to receive an invoice prior to actual delivery, this must be requested from BYNCO by the Buyer and BYNCO, in consultation with the External Seller, will draw up and issue the relevant invoice(s) prior to actual delivery.
- 10.5 If the Attorney-in-fact wishes to change the date and/or time of actual delivery of the Car, this may be done free of charge on working days and no later than 24 hours before. If the Attorney-in-fact asks for the Car to be changed within 24 hours prior to the agreed date and time of actual delivery, BYNCO shall be entitled to charge the Buyer for the costs incurred, up to a maximum of € 181.50. The Attorney-in-fact shall be entitled to charge the Buyer for this. BYNCO shall inform the Buyer of a change in the date and/or time of actual delivery of the Car.
- 10.6 If the Named Person is not present at the agreed address of actual delivery at the time of actual delivery of the Car, BYNCO shall be entitled to charge the Buyer for the costs incurred for this purpose with a maximum of € 181.50.
- 10.7 If the Named Person is not able of finalizing the full payment at the time of actual delivery of the Car, BYNCO shall be entitled to charge the Buyer for the costs incurred for this purpose with a maximum of € 181.50.
- 10.8 At the time of actual delivery, the Attendee must identify himself/herself with his/her driving licence to the official who delivers the Car on behalf of BYNCO and the External Seller.
- 10.9 The Attorney-in-fact is obliged to take delivery of the Car himself/herself.
- 10.10 The Attorney-in-fact and at the Buyer's option the Buyer if not the Attorney-in-fact, will inspect the Car together with the official responsible for the actual delivery of the Car on behalf of BYNCO and the External Seller using the BYNCO delivery procedure.
- 10.11 After inspection, the Attorney-in-fact will decide with the Buyer (if not the Attorney-in-fact) whether or not to accept the Car. If the Attorney-in-fact accepts the Car, the official actually delivering the Car on behalf of BYNCO and the External Seller will immediately contact an employee of the External Seller's contact designated by BYNCO. This employee will immediately take care of the name of the Car at the Road Traffic Department (RDW) in the name of the Employee and will immediately send a digital confirmation to the Employee.
- 10.12 The Employee or the Buyer, at the Buyer's option if the Employee is not the Employee, will sign for receipt of the Car by placing a digital signature and pressing the green button in the digital BYNCO environment on the handheld of the official delivering the Car on behalf of BYNCO and the External Seller. The official in question will then hand over all relevant



documents and keys to the Attorney-in-fact. By signing the Employee or the Buyer accepts the car in the state as is at the actual delivery.

10.13 If the Attorney-in-fact or the Buyer, at the Buyer's option if he is not the Attorney-in-fact, refuses to take delivery of the Car, he will press the red button in the digital BYNCO environment on the handheld of the official delivering the Car on behalf of BYNCO and the External Seller, and the provisions of Article 14.1 will apply.

### 11 Legal supply and risk transfer

As the Attorney-in-fact or the Buyer has accepted the Car at the time of actual delivery by pressing the green button as referred to in Article 10.11, the legal delivery is made by BYNCO, on behalf of the External Seller, to the Buyer, the Buyer becomes the owner of the Car and the Car is at the risk of the Buyer in accordance with the provisions of Article 7:11 of the Dutch Civil Code. This means, among other things, that from the moment of legal delivery, damage to or loss of the Car shall be at the Buyer's expense. If the Attorney-in-fact is not the Purchaser, the Attorney-in-fact will hold the Car for the Purchaser, who owns the Car from the moment of legal delivery.

#### 12 Warranty and complaints

- The external Seller grants the Buyer a warranty as described in the BYNCO Warranty Scheme, attached as Appendix II (BYNCO Guarantee Scheme) and which can be viewed at all times on the BYNCO site. In addition, the BYNCO Warranty Scheme will be provided to the Registration Holder at the time of the actual delivery of the Car, via email.
- Autotrust Europe B.V. carries out the warranty for BYNCO. The Buyer must apply directly to Autotrust Europe B.V. for implementation of the BYNCO Warranty Scheme.
- 12.3 The rights and claims granted to the Buyer in the BYNCO Warranty Scheme do not in any way affect any legal right that the Buyer has to hold the External Seller liable for non-conformity of the Car.
- In the event of questions and/or complaints about the External Seller's Offer and/or the Car purchased by the Buyer from the External Seller, the Buyer must at all times turn directly to the relevant External Seller. The Buyer acknowledges that in these cases he/she cannot appeal to BYNCO and that BYNCO is in no way whatsoever liable, including but not limited to any non-conformity of the Car.
- 12.5 The External Seller will follow the complaints procedure, which is available in the BYNCO environment, and will handle any complaints in accordance with this complaints procedure.

# 13 Insurance

The Buyer is required by law to have taken out insurance for the Car that complies with statutory requirements, including the Dutch Motor Insurance Liability Act, from the time of



actual delivery of the Car. The Buyer is responsible for registering products such as alarm systems (including certificates).

# 14 Dissolution of the Purchase Agreement

- 14.1 If the Car is not accepted by the Buyer or the Registration Holder at the time of actual delivery and the red button is pressed as referred to in Clause 10.12, the Purchase Agreement will be dissolved with immediate effect and no further rights can be derived from it.
- BYNCO shall be entitled on behalf of the External Seller, or the External Seller themselves are entitled to dissolve and terminate the Purchase Agreement if:
  - 14.2.1 the Registration Holder is not present at the agreed location, date and time of the actual delivery of the Car;
  - 14.2.2 BYNCO or the External Seller has not delivered the Car to the Buyer within fourteen days of the conclusion of the Purchase Agreement due to a circumstance for which the Buyer is liable;
  - 14.2.3 the Buyer fails to successfully complete payment of the Purchase Price within 24 hours of entering into the Purchase Agreement as referred to in Article 6.3;
  - 14.2.4 the Buyer has not paid the Purchase Price as referred to in Clause 6.5 within 60 minutes after commencement of the Delivery; or
  - 14.2.5 the Buyer is declared bankrupt at any time between the conclusion of the Purchase Agreements and the actual delivery of the Car to the Registration Holder.

The above does not in any way affect the statutory possibilities for dissolution, which are otherwise fully applicable.

- 14.3 The Buyer is entitled to dissolve the Sales Agreement if:
  - 14.3.1 after the conclusion of the Purchase Agreement and at least 24 hours before the moment of actual delivery, the Buyer decides, for whatever reason, not to purchase the Car. If the dissolvement is requested less than 24 hours before the moment of actual delivery BYNCO shall be entitled to charge the Buyer for the costs incurred, up to a maximum of € 181.50.
    - 14.3.2 the Buyer makes use of the right of revocation as referred to in Article 15; or
  - 14.3.3 BYNCO has not delivered the Car to him within eighteen workdays of the conclusion of the Purchase Agreement as a result of circumstances which are BYNCO's or the External Seller's responsibility.

The above shall in no way affect the statutory possibilities of dissolution, which shall otherwise apply in full.

14.4 In the event of termination of the Sales Agreement before the legal delivery of the Car has taken place, BYNCO shall send a confirmation thereof to the Buyer by e-mail. The consequence of dissolving the Purchase Agreement before legal delivery of the Car has taken place shall be that ownership of the Car has never passed to the Buyer and that the Buyer shall be entitled to receive the Purchase Price back if it has been paid for legal delivery into



the Third Party Funds Account as described in Article 6.3. BYNCO shall instruct GoCredible Foundation to refund the Purchase Price immediately to the bank account from which the Buyer paid the Purchase Price into the Third Party Funds Account. The GoCredible Foundation shall execute this payment order within 2 working days at the latest.

In the event that the Purchase Agreement is dissolved by invoking the right of revocation provided for in Article 15, BYNCO shall send a confirmation thereof to the Buyer and the Registration Holder by e-mail. The consequence of the dissolution of the Purchase Agreement shall in that case be that the Buyer must return the Car as soon as possible to BYNCO, which shall accept delivery of the Car on behalf of the External Seller, and that the Buyer shall then be entitled to receive the Purchase Price back. The Buyer shall cooperate fully with the provision of ownership and transfer of ownership of the Car to BYNCO, which shall accept this provision of ownership and transfer of ownership on behalf of the External Seller, in order to transfer the ownership of the Car back to the External Seller, and guarantees that the Registration Holder, to the extent necessary, shall also provide this cooperation. BYNCO and the External Seller shall do all that is necessary to return the Car in the name of the External Seller to the Road Traffic Department (RDW) and refund the Purchase Price to the bank account from which the Purchase Price was paid by the Buyer to the Third Party Deposit Account in accordance with the provisions of Article 6.

# 15 Right of revocation

After the legal delivery of the Car, the Buyer has a reflection period of 14 days to consider whether or not to keep the Car. During the reflection period, the Buyer can terminate the Purchase Agreement without giving any reason. The 14 day reflection period begins on the day the Car has actually been delivered to the Registration Holder and has been accepted by the Registration Holder, whether or not together with the Buyer if the latter is not the Registration Holder, by pressing the green button as referred to in article 10.11.

If the car has been financed by means of a financial lease, a penalty may have to be paid by the Buyer in the event of cancellation of the purchase. Unless an alternative car is purchased by means of a change of pledge.

# 16 Rights and obligations of the Registration Holder during the reflection period

- 16.1 The Registration Holder is permitted to use the Car during the reflection period in an appropriate manner to the extent necessary to assess and determine the nature, characteristics, and operation of the Car.
- 16.2 When using the Car during the reflection period, the Registration Holder must: (a) handle the Car with care;
  - 16.2.1 comply with all traffic rules and all other applicable laws and regulations;
  - 16.2.2 lock the Car after use and use all available security;
  - 16.1.3 report any malfunction, defect or other problem with the Car directly to BYNCO.
- In order to retain the right to a refund of the full Purchase Price, the Registration Holder is not permitted to do the following during the reflection period:
  - 16.3.1 drive more than 200 kilometres in the Car;



16.3.2	remove anything from the Car;
16.3.3	add anything to the Car (other than liquids necessary for reasonable use during the reflection period);
16.3.4	change anything about the Car (other than mileage and normal wear and tear due to reasonable use during the Reflection Period within the scope of this Article);
16.3.5	use the Car outside the Netherlands;
16.3.6	use the Car while a driver is under the influence of alcohol, drugs or medication (to the extent that the medication may affect the ability to drive);
16.3.7	carry more passengers than the passenger capacity of the Car;
16.3.8	use the wrong fuel;
16.3.9	use the Car for motorsport purposes, for example by participating in a race or competition (legal or illegal);
16.3.10	use the Car to participate in vehicle tests or safety training;
16.3.11	use the Car for commercial passenger transport;
16.3.12	rent and/or sublet the Car to third parties;
16.3.13	use the Car off-road;
16.3.14	use the Car for driver training(s);
16.3.15	use the Car to carry out a crime or any illegal activity;
16.3.16	use the Car to transport toxic, flammable or otherwise dangerous substances;
16.3.17	overload the Car (as determined by the manufacturer); (r) allow the Car to be used outside the direct family circle; and
16.3.18	(s) use the Car in any other negligent, careless, negligent or unlawful manner.
Consequences of non-compliance by the Registration Holder during the reflection period	
If the Registration Holder acts contrary to one of the provisions of Article 16, the Buyer shall be liable to the External Seller for the reduction in value of the Car as a result of said acts	
If more than 200 kilometres have been driven with the car during the reflection period, an amount of € 2 per kilometre (above 200) will be charged to the Buyer	
The car shall be returned clean (interior & exterior). If that is not the case, an amount of € 75 will be charged to the Buyer for polishing and cleaning purposes.	
The Car shall be returned in exactly the same conditions as the car was in at the time of actual	

delivery (higher mileage excluded). The same conditions imply: complete, in the same

17

17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4



technical condition, with no extra damages or user marks on the interior or exterior of the Car. If deviations occur, the Buyer shall be liable to the External Seller for the reduction in value of the Car.

17.5 The amount of the loss of value shall be determined by the Damage assessor and shall be binding for the Buyer, the External Seller and BYNCO.

# 18 Buyer's obligations in case of revocation

- 18.1 If the Buyer decides to exercise his right of withdrawal as referred to in Article 15, he shall inform BYNCO thereof by sending an e-mail to klantenservice@bynco.com and at the e-mail address of the External Seller as indicated on the payment statement and the invoice for the Car. For this purpose, the Buyer may use the Model Form attached as Appendix 2 (Model revocation form).
- The Buyer shall include the mileage of the Car as it is at the time of revocation of the right of revocation in his email. The Buyer shall send a photo of the mileage of the Car with this email.
- 18.3 The Buyer is no longer entitled to use the Car in any way from the moment of invoking the right of revocation. The Buyer will inform the Registration Holder, if different from the Buyer.
- After the Buyer invokes the right of revocation, the Registration Holder shall provide all and any cooperation desired by BYNCO and the External Seller with regards to the collection of the Car by or on behalf of BYNCO and the External Seller as soon as possible and in changing the name of the Car with the Road Traffic Department (RDW).
- 18.5 In accordance with the provisions of Article 6:230s and Article 7:11 of the Dutch Civil Code, the Buyer shall bear the risk of loss of or damage to the Car during the reflection period until the Car has been collected from the Registration Holder in accordance with Article 19.3.
- 18.6 Until the Car is collected by or on behalf of BYNCO and the External Seller from the Registration Holder and the certificate of indemnification of the Car is issued to the Registration Holder, the Buyer remains liable for all legal obligations and costs related to being the owner of the Car. The warranty certificate will be provided to the Assigned Owner upon collection of the Car.
- 18.7 If, after invoking the right of withdrawal, the Car has still been driven, the Buyer will owe a compensation of € 5 per kilometre for this.
- 18.8 In the event of revocation, the Buyer will return the Car with half a fuel tank.

# 19 BYNCO's obligations in the event of revocation

- 19.1 BYNCO shall, on behalf of the External Seller, confirm the revocation invoked by the Buyer as soon as possible and at the latest within 1 working day of receipt of the revocation notice to the Buyer, and the Registration Holder if this is a person other than the Buyer.
- 19.2 BYNCO shall contact the Registration Holder as soon as possible after receipt of the aforementioned notice from the Buyer in order to make an appointment to collect the Car.
- 19.3 BYNCO shall endeavour to collect the Car no later than 2 working days after receipt of the revocation notice. BYNCO, the External Seller or at least a third party designated by BYNCO



and/or the External Seller shall collect the Car from the Registration Holder's address. If the Buyer is not the Registration Holder, it is the responsibility of the Buyer to set up the appointment for collection of the Car with the Registration Holder.

- 19.4 When collecting the Car, BYNCO follows the following collection protocol:
  - 19.4.1 When collecting the Car:
    - (i) it is determined whether all associated documents and keys are complete;
    - (ii) the odometer reading of the Car is taken; and
    - (iii) the ascription of the Car in the name of the Registration Holder is suspended and the certificate of indemnification is provided to the Buyer.
- 19.4.2 After the Car has been taken possession of by or on behalf of BYNCO and External Seller, BYNCO will have the Car inspected by the Damage assessor for any loss in value resulting from the use of the Car in violation of Article 16. As a result of the inspection, a report shall be drawn up, which shall be binding for the Buyer, External Seller and BYNCO;
- 19.4.3 BYNCO shall, on behalf of the External Seller, inform the Buyer within 2 working days after taking possession of the Car what has been included in the Damage Report and the results of its calculation based on the odometer readings.
- 19.5 If:
- 19.5.1 the Damage assessor establishes that the Car has lost value as a result of use contrary to Clause 16;
- 19.5.2 BYNCO, on behalf of the External Seller, establishes that more than 200 kilometres were driven with the Car during the reflection period; and/or
- 19.5.3 BYNCO, on behalf of the External Seller, establishes that the Car has been driven after invoking the right of withdrawal,

The Buyer shall owe BYNCO the amounts determined by the Damage assessor and BYNCO, on behalf of the External Seller. These amounts shall be immediately due and payable, without prior notice of default being required.

- 19.6 The External Seller shall be entitled to write off amounts owed to it by the Buyer from the Purchase Price, which External Seller shall repay to the Buyer in the event of revocation. BYNCO is entitled to carry out this write off on behalf of the External Seller.
- 19.7 If the Purchase Agreement is dissolved due to revocation by the Buyer, BYNCO shall, on behalf of the External Seller, repay the full Purchase Price to the bank account from which the original payment of the Purchase Price was made to the Third Party Funds Account, no later than 5 working days after, the day of the collection of the Car, unless there has been a reduction in value or if costs have been incurred within the meaning of Article 19.5 above, in which case these shall be deducted and the adjusted Purchase Price (in accordance with the provisions of Article 19.6 above) shall be paid into the bank account from which the original payment of the Purchase Price was made into the Third Party Funds Account no later than 2 working days after the determination of the reduction in value or confirmation that the Car



has been driven more than 200 kilometres or that the Car has been driven after revocation, by BYNCO, on behalf of the External Seller. The Purchase Price shall always be refunded to the Buyer at the latest within 14 days after the date of receipt by BYNCO and the External Seller of the revocation email as referred to in Article 18.1 above.

# 20 Buyer's liability for Registration Holder

If the Buyer is not also the Registration Holder, the Buyer shall be jointly and severally liable for all damage suffered by BYNCO and/or the External Seller as a result of the Registration Holder's failure to fulfil any obligation arising from the Purchase Agreement.



### II AUTOTRUST / BYNCO WARRANTY SCHEME

Every car comes with a minimum of 12 months of BOVAG warranty. Bynco works together with Autotrust. Autotrust takes care of the whole process and carries out the warranty. Bynco always remains responsible for the given warranty.

# What does Bynco Warranty cover?

At Bynco you are entitled to the most extensive coverage:

- All mechanical and electronic parts
- · Compensation on parts and labour
- Diagnostic costs
- Replacement transport
- Repairs in the Netherlands and abroad

### What does your warranty cover?

All mechanical and electrical parts of the car are covered by the Bynco warranty. This includes but is not limited to the following parts:

- The engine
- Manual/automatic transmission
- Cooling system
- (Four wheel) drive system
- Brake system
- Suspension
- Steering system
- Fuel system
- Emission system
- Interior/exterior
- Air conditioning/heating
- Airbags

Both parts and labour costs are covered by the warranty.

# What else is reimbursed?

The diagnostic costs and (necessary) transport from the car to the repairer are also covered by the warranty if the defect is also covered by the warranty.

# What is NOT covered by the warranty?

Warranty does not include:

- Wheel rims
- Bodywork (including glass)
- Maintenance parts
- Parts and accessories that are not factory-mounted
- Interior parts
- Software updates
- External hazards



#### How long does the warranty last?

You are covered by the warranty for the duration of 365 days after purchase. The warranty therefore ends 365 days after the purchase of your car. If you wish, you can then choose to extend the warranty. It is possible that the car has manufacturer's warranty. In that case the manufacturer's warranty will be the warranty provided for the duration of 365 days after purchase.

#### What do we consider to be a defect?

We define 'defect' as an unexpected failure of a component during the warranty period. We only consider an issue to be a defect if it is not caused by external influences. If a part functions normally, it will not be replaced or repaired. (Background) noise or changing properties are not considered to be reason for repair.

#### Repair

The Bynco Pre-owned Car Warranty is intended solely for the repair of a defect in your car. Your car will always be repaired in a professional and sustainable manner. Autotrust has the liberty to determine, in consultation with the mechanic, how the car will be repaired.

## Warranty certificate

On the day of registration you will receive an e-mail containing a pdf of the warranty booklet and a warranty certificate. After about 15 days Autotrust will contact you by phone on behalf of Bynco to explain how to proceed should you encounter a defect in your car. During this phone call, the conditions of the warranty will also be discussed in order to prevent misunderstandings in the future as best as possible.

#### A defect?

You can report the defect online via www.autotrust.nl/claims.

Fill in your license plate number and the odometer reading and indicate the number and the nature of the defects you have found. Then, simply double check your data and press the 'agree' button. You will receive a confirmation by email.

You can also call the Autotrust service number: 0592 - 340018.

Important! In order to provide you with fast and good service, the repair must first be assessed and approved by Autotrust before the car is repaired by a repairer selected by Bynco. Never keep on driving with a defect.

### What to do in case of a defect?

- 1. Sign up online or by phone
- 2. Approval by Autotrust
- 3. Make an appointment with Bynco-repairer

# Problems abroad?

If you have a defect abroad and the defect is covered, it is also covered by the warranty. You must report the defect to Autotrust and they will tell you whether it is covered. You can pay the costs yourself at the garage or you can choose to have the invoice sent to Autotrust.



#### Who pays the repair costs?

Autotrust is Bynco's executive warranty partner. Autotrust carries out the warranty and handles your claim. If there is a valid claim, Autotrust will pay you or the garage directly, depending on the agreement made. Of course, we at Bynco remain responsible for the given warranty.

#### Maintenance

Every car needs maintenance. This maintenance involves replacing parts that are not meant to last a lifetime. Maintenance parts and operations are not covered by the warranty. You are responsible for the maintenance of your vehicle.

#### Maintenance history

If maintenance and repairs are carried out within the warranty period, the service booklet must be updated by the garage. Retain all invoices and reports received during service, MOT inspection, breakdown service, or garage visit. This information is required by Autotrust in the event of a claim.

#### Which parts are not covered?

Maintenance parts, parts that are not factory fitted and parts that need to be replaced as part of regular maintenance are not covered by the warranty.

#### Other Terms and Conditions

**Report a claim**: in case of a defect, we ask you to always report it directly online. report via: <a href="www.autotrust.nl/claims">www.autotrust.nl/claims</a>, if this is not possible call 0592 340018. After receiving Autotrust's approval, you can have the car repaired. Never drive a defective car!

**Maintenance**: maintain your car properly and regularly check the level your car's fluid levels. Before using the car, read the instruction booklet, study the important points as well as the maintenance schedule. If a malfunction or defect occurs because you do not know or do not follow the instructions indicated in the operating manual, you yourself may be (partly) to blame for the defect. Keep all proof of maintenance and repair. You may have to submit this in case of a claim in order to be reimbursed for the repair, if it is covered by the warranty.

If a defect can be remedied by a maintenance operation such as cleaning, lubrication, (adjustment), resetting or updating software, this is considered to be part of the maintenance.

When can you not claim your warranty? If you yourself are (partly) to blame for the occurrence of a defect, you are not entitled to repair covered by warranty. This may be the case, for example, if a defect has arisen due to overloading, negligence, carelessness or operating errors.

**Force majeure**: If a defect is caused by external calamity, it has nothing to do with the quality of your car. In that case, you cannot claim under the warranty. This includes defects caused by (water) damage, a collision, shocks caused by speed bumps and potholes in the road or gravel. Many of these types of incidents are often covered by your car accident insurance.

**Termination of warranty**: in case of suspicion of fraud or abuse, the warranty may be terminated by Autotrust.

It is important that you adhere to the above conditions. If you have not met the conditions, your right to a warranty will lapse.



**Disputes:** if you do not agree with the outcome of your claim, or if you have a complaint, you can contact us in writing: Autotrust BV, Complaints and Disputes, P.O. Box 930, 9400 AX ASSEN or send an e-mail to service@autotrust.nl.

Autotrust will reply within 14 days. If you are not satisfied with Autotrust's response, you can contact Bynco at 030-808 02 20 or via <a href="mailto:klantenservice@bynco.com">klantenservice@bynco.com</a>.

#### III Bynco promise 'No expenses and no worries after purchase'

When you purchase a Car at Bynco, every car comes with a 'No expenses and no worries after purchase' promise in the first 12 months/12.000 kilometres (whatever comes first). In case of a defect, or some other issue, which occurred without yourself to blame. We will cover your costs either through the Bynco warranty or through this promise. Exceptions: in the following situations we do not cover the costs

- If the defect or the maintenance requirement is caused by your actions, e.g. by overloading or incorrect operation of the car, reckless driving and negligence;
- If it is covered by your car insurance or the manufacturer's warranty;
- In the event of external circumstances, i.e. when a defect is caused by water, hail or storm damage, a bad road surface or another road user;
- If no permission has been given for the repair, maintenance, or modification (tuning, lowering, etc.) of the car.